kodi.sprott@haringey.gov.uk

25 January 2024

To: All Members of the Pensions Committee and Board

Dear Member,

Pensions Committee and Board - Tuesday, 30th January, 2024

I attach a copy of the following reports for the above-mentioned meeting which were not available at the time of collation of the agenda:

7. MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 20)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Pensions Committee and Board meeting held on 6 September 2023 and 13 July 2023 as a correct record.

- 14. INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (PAGES 21 24)
- 21. EXEMPT INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (PAGES 25 36)
- 22. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS (PAGES 37 40)
 Exempt minutes 13 July 2023

Yours sincerely

Ayshe Simsek Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager 0208 489 2929

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE AND BOARD HELD ON THURSDAY, 13TH JULY, 2023, 7.00 - 9.06 pm

PRESENT:

Councillors: Ahmed Mahbub (Chair), John Bevan (Vice-Chair), Nick da Costa, Tammy Hymas, Cathy Brennan and Matt White,

Co-opted Members: Ishmael Owarish and Randy Plowright

1. FILMING AT MEETINGS

The Chair referred Members present to agenda Item 1 as shown on the agenda in respect of filming at this meeting, and Members noted the information contained therein.

2. APOLOGIES

Apologies had been received from Mr Keith Brown, Mr Craig Pattinson and Councillor lyngkaran (Councillor Brennan was substituting in his place).

3. URGENT BUSINESS

None.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS

None.

6. RECORD OF TRAINING UNDERTAKEN SINCE LAST MEETING

Councillor Bevan had reported his training to Democratic Services.

The Pensions Committee and Board had received training on cashflow requirements shortly before the start of the meeting.

7. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2023 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.



8. PENSION ADMINISTRATION UPDATE

Mr Jamie Abbot, Pensions Manager, presented the item.

The meeting heard that:

- The second recommendation on the agenda papers stating 'to note' referred to table listing the companies and the range of the services they offered. The recommendation to approve was to seek approval for admitting the listed companies into the Council's LGPS scheme.
- There had been a recent appointment to the role of Pensions Officer and there was now a fully staffed Pensions team.
- The department were looking to explore the appointments of apprentices. The Committee would be kept updated with progress on this issue. It was difficult to recruit for pensions expertise, but now that an appointment had been made, Human Resources would be contacted before the end of the year to ensure that an apprentice could be appointed.

RESOLVED

- To note the report and the information provided regarding the Pension Fund's administration activities.
- 2. To note and approve the admission of the entities listed in section 6.14 of the report, as new employers participating in the Haringey Local Government Pension Scheme.

9. PENSION FUND QUARTERLY INVESTMENT AND PERFORMANCE UPDATE

The Chair noted that the item was also to be heard under item 19 as part of the exempt papers.

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance, presented the item.

The meeting heard that:

- It would be useful if a representative of London CIV were to attend a meeting and discuss with the Committee: their future funds, the pooling company and other relevant issues.
- A future investment and governance working group was suggested by members.
- There was an arrangement with two big asset managers in the UK. These managers did a lot of the passive funds and essentially those funds were not directly managed by the London CIV. However, there would be an arrangement in place where it considered these funds as pooled. The London CIV, since its inception, had set up different funds which were invested in directly, such as the Land London Safe Multi Asset credit, the London CIV. The Renewable Infrastructure Fund and the London Fund. These were investments that the London CIV had set up themselves. They had appointed

their managers and regularly monitored, managed and reported their performance. The other passive managed assets, although considered to be pooled assets, were not directly under their oversight. They didn't manage or make any decisions on those portfolios, and they just had an agreement in place.

RESOLVED:

To note the information provided in section 6 of this report regarding the Pension Fund's investment performance and activity for the quarter ended 31 March 2023. The meeting later considered the item under item 19.

10. INDEPENDENT ADVISORS LGPS UPDATE

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance, presented the item, noting that the Planning level funding position had improved from 113 to 132%

The following was noted in response to questions from the Committee:

- LGPS funds in UK were not too small. The present funding level average was 106%. It was a highly funded scheme, achieved because individual LGPS funds made sensible asset allocations.
- Lancashire City Council had passed a motion calling on county councils to divest from investments in occupied territories. It was noted that this did not relate to the LGPS.
- It was noted that it was legitimate not to invest in an individual company on ESG grounds or financial grounds.
- There was a live petition asking the Committee to commit to not investing in occupied territories in Israel. The bill dealt with procurement as well as pensions. It was noted that there was a need to wait for final legislation for more certainty.
- If any fund was going to do exclusions, they would have to make sure it was strictly on investment grounds or ESG grounds; not the ESG grounds which could be said to be politically motivated.
- There were concerns over restrictions on members democratic rights related to demands being made by Members as well as infringed ability to make decisions over fiduciary duty. Chair to raise with Council Leader.
- The Chair asked for there to be an update on the second House of Commons reading at the next meeting.

The Chair sought clarification around whether more resource was required for McCloud work, officers stated this wasn't clear yet.

RESOLVED

To note the Independent Advisors, LGPS Update, June 2023 paper, appended as Appendix 1 to this report.

11. LOCAL AUTHORITY PENSION FUND FORUM (LAPFF) UPDATE

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance, presented the item.

- The Committee would be kept updated on the levels of engagement and if any other companies were coming forward with new climate transition plans.
- Members were reminded that LAPFF sent out a lot of information about the
 activities they had done. They also invited members to events to get a better
 understanding of the work being completed.

RESOLVED

To note the content of this report.

12. HARINGEY PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance, presented the item.

The following was noted in response to questions from the Committee:

- Apprenticeships within the Pensions Team had not been appointed to as yet.
 The team had appointed a Graduate Trainee who would be joining in September.
- It was important to distinguish short and long-term periods. Over longer time periods where inflation had averaged to the 2% target, the Investment Strategy in place had an expected return that was significantly higher. The fund had outperformed inflation over longer time periods.
- Regarding Gov4, a big challenge of the fund was to engage with the employers and employees. For employers, officers were soon to work over a new platform called IConnect – this would give employers more control over their data. Employees would have a member self-service.
- Regarding the Annual Pension Statement, last year the team did a double approach for active members. These members received the statement online via their members self-service portal. For deferred members, the team posted them out. There had not been a decision on how this would be done this year.

RESOLVED

To note and provide any comments on the Pension Fund's risk register. The area of focus for review at this meeting was Governance-related risks.

13. FORWARD PLAN

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance, presented the item.

The following was noted in response to questions from the Committee:

- There would be further strategy discussions outside of the formal Committee meeting.
- Reminders were set out to members of the dates of future LGA training sessions.

RESOLVED

To note the progress made towards the agreed key priorities outlined in section 6 of this report, specifically in relation to the investment strategy review work. To identify additional matters and training requirements for inclusion within the Pensions Committee and Board's forward plan

14. INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW: CASHFLOW REQUIREMENTS REVIEW

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance, presented the item,

The Chair noted that the item was also to be heard as part of the exempt papers.

The Committee heard that:

• The papers that were brought forward are specifically to discuss what the cash flow requirement looked like and also would look at the options of making any changes to the investment strategy to ensure that we had a good cash strategy in place for the pension scheme.

RESOLVED:

- 1. To note Hymans Robertson's Cashflow Projections paper, appended as Confidential Appendix 1 to this report, and the advice contained therein.
- 2. To note Mercer's Income Considerations paper, appended as Confidential Appendix 1 to this report, and the advice contained therein.
- 3. To approve a change to the income distribution policy for the applicable global listed equities strategies managed by Legal and General Investment Management within the investment portfolio.
- 4. To delegate the authority to the Head of Pensions & Treasury to implement the above changes (if approved), after consultation with the Chair of the Pensions Committee and Board

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None

16. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

6 September 2023

17. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Items 18- 21 were subject to a motion to exclude the press and public from the meeting as they contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1985); paras 3 and 5; namely information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) and information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

The meeting adjourned at 8:10pm for a short recess and reconvened at 8:17pm

18. EXEMPT MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2023 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

19. EXEMPT - PENSION FUND QUARTERLY INVESTMENT AND PERFORMANCE UPDATE

The exempt recommendations were approved.

20. EXEMPT - INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVEW - CASHFLOW REQUIREMENT

The exempt recommendations were approved.

21. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

None.

CHAIR: Councillor Ahmed Mahbub
Signed by Chair
Date

_

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE AND BOARD HELD ON WEDNESDAY 6 SEPTEMBER 2023, 7:00PM – 9:06PM

PRESENT: Cllr Mahbub (Chair), Cllr Bevan, Cllr lyngkaran, Cllr Hymas, Keith

Brown, Randy Plowright, Craig Pattinson, John Raisin

(Independent Advisor).

1. FILMING AT MEETINGS

The Chair referred to the notice of filming at meetings and this information was noted.

2. APOLOGIES

Apologies had been received from Councillor Matt White, Councillor Nick da Costa and Ishmael Owarish

3. URGENT BUSINESS

There were none.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS

There were none.

6. RECORD OF TRAINING UNDERTAKEN SINCE LAST MEETING

Councillor Bevan had reported his training to Democratic Services.

7. MINUTES

The minutes of the 13 July 2023 meeting would be submitted to the next scheduled meeting.

8. PENSION ADMINISTRATION UPDATE

Mr Jamie Abbott, Pensions Manager, introduced the item.

The Committee and Board were informed that the most significant impact of this impending change in regulations would be on operational activity due to increased workload requirements of the pensions administration team. It was further noted that a variety of employment activity data would be required from scheme employers to assess the impact on individual member pension benefits. The Committee and Board were informed that the government planned to issue its final guidance on 1 October 2023. It was expected that this guidance would provide direction on the treatment of cases were data from employers could not be sourced. The Head of Pensions noted that the government was aware of this issue and highlighted the difficulties associated with receiving this information from employers.

The meeting heard:

- In response to a query regarding what impact the McCloud Project would have on the Pensions Fund, the meeting heard that not many members were likely to be affected by the McCloud remedy. This was partly because where the care scheme being 1/49th was a better factor compared to 1/60th, the member would have had significant pay rises in the last 2-3 years to be eligible for the underpin protection. There were not many members that fell into that category.
- The data that was requested from the employers was the hours, pay and any breaks in service. This was because under the pre 14 regulations, the pension was calculated by the service of the member's multiplied by their final pay, multiplied by 1/60th as a factor. This changed from 1 April 2014 to a care scheme where the calculation was the member's earning for that year multiplied by 1/49th, multiplied by the revaluation factor (normally the CPI factor), so the service would no longer form part of the equation. From 1 April 2014, schemes stopped collecting that data due to this change. However, the data was now needed to make the

comparison between the two pension schemes. Regarding the 40% of employers who had not responded, the guidance recommended that the Council perform an educated assumption. For example, if it could be determined that a member had earned £10,000 for one financial year, but had a full time equivalent of £20,000, it would be safe to assume that the individual had worked half of the allocated hours. However, the final guidance had not been issued yet. The government planned on the final guidance being implemented from 1 October 2023. Between this meeting and 1 October 2023, it was expected that there would be a clear guidance which would then be implemented. The government had already recognised non-responses from employers being an issue and Haringey was quite advanced in terms of getting the information. Some employers would have left the scheme many years ago, so it was very difficult to get a 100% return on responses. There was still time, however, to increase the response rate of 60%.

- In relation to a query regarding how many members were using the self-service portal, the meeting heard that there had been considerable increase. Initially there had been an 8% uptake. This had increased to 17.4%. Efforts were being made to signpost members to the member self-service. If members made a request for an estimate, they were advised that they could do it themselves online to make them more self-sufficient.
- The PCB requested a presentation of the Member Self Service portal. It was noted that this could be presented as part of a future Investment & Governance Working Group session.

RESOLVED:

That the Pensions Committee and Board note the report and the information provided regarding the Pension Fund's administration activities for the quarter ending 30 June 2023.

9. QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury) and Mr John Raisin, Independent Advisor, presented the item.

- A query was raised regarding the Fund's funding position (143% as at 30 June 2023) and whether it was possible to reduce the amount of employee contributions given the cost-of-living crisis. In response, the Head of Pensions informed the Committee and Board that the employee contribution rates were set by the government and the recent estimate in funding level would have no impact on these rates. It was highlighted to members that the primary driver behind the improvement in the funding level was the discount rate assumed by the Fund Actuary which had increase since the 2022 valuation. This had reduced the present value of the Fund's liabilities, although asset values had remained relatively flat over the same period. The PCB was informed that actuarial valuations took place once every three years and that is when employer contributions could be reviewed. It was further noted that the funding position update report was intended to assist the PCB in monitoring how the Fund's investment portfolio was performing relative to its liabilities in-between valuation years.
- Concerns were raised regarding the lack of review of the investment strategy in recent years. It was noted that there had been some dramatic movements in the financial markets, particularly, related to the relative valuation of US markets and other global markets that had not been properly discussed by the Committee and Board. The concern was further expanded on to include a discussion regarding the investment approach of global indexes as well as the merits of passive versus active investment approaches. It was suggested that the Fund's current investment governance process needed to be reviewed at some point in the near future. In response to the question, the Head of Pensions acknowledged the concern and suggested that a review of the Fund's investment governance process could be included as a future agenda item. It was suggested that the Investment & Governance Working Group could discuss this process in detail to better inform the preparation and recommendations from officers and advisors. Fixed income was highlighted as an asset class that was attractively valued at the time and was suggested as a notable consideration for the PCB's strategic asset allocation decision. However, it was explained that this assessment would require a detailed review session.

The item was later considered as part of the exempt agenda item 19.

RESOLVED:

That the Pensions Committee and Board note the information provided in section 6 of the report regarding the Pension Fund investment performance and activity for the quarter ending 30 June 2023.

10. HARINGEY PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury), introduced the item.

The Head of Pensions noted that the Haringey Pension Fund's annual report had been prepared by the pensions accounting team in accordance with the CIPFA guidance. It was further noted that the Pension Fund was required to publish its audited annual report by 1 December each year. The Council's external auditor, BDO, was responsible for completing the audit of the annual report on time and provide assurance on the preparation of the annual report. It was explained that this assurance would be in the form of an audit opinion which would be issued alongside the audit opinion of the Council's Statement of Account.

- A query was raised regarding the governance process which provided assurance to the Committee and Board that the annual report has been prepared in accordance with guidance and the appropriate accounting standards. In response, the Head of Pensions confirmed that as part of the process, the external auditor would present their audit plan in advance of each audit exercise to the Committee and Board and would regularly provide subsequent updates on the progress made.
- A query was raised relating to the internal process for ensuring that the annual report has been prepared in accordance with the appropriate accounting standards. The Head of Pensions informed the Committee and Board that report went through various checks consistent with the finance team structure. Typically, the report was drafted by a senior accountant and checked by senior fund officers which included the Head of Pensions and the Assistant Director of Finance. The chief accountant's

team would then conduct a further check before the Pension Fund Accounts were published.

Further concerns were raised regarding the delay in the completion of the external audit exercise since the financial year 20/21. Members of the Committee and Board considered this current situation untenable and requested that an official complaint be raised with the appropriate authorities. It was further suggested that the officers should explore alternative plans for ensuring assurance over the Fund's financial operations. It was further noted that this was a national issue and not unique to Haringey. As such, the government was consulting on a framework to address the backlog in local government audits. The Committee and Board would be updated on this once it became clear what the next steps were.

The Committee and Board commented that:

- As the audit profession was regulated, local authorities or the GLA should be making an official complaint that the industry was not upholding its duties. A 'plan B' was required as auditing and the asset management industry were large operations. It should be possible to commission an exam, test or review of whatever particular element the Committee thought was most vulnerable to give in order to provide comfort that accurate financial statements were being reported whilst the industry was undergoing reform. In response, the meeting heard that the issue had been escalated by the Society of the London Treasurers. The Council's external auditors were BDO who were experiencing a backlog created during the coronavirus crisis. BDO were also having difficulty recruiting auditors and some of their resources had been focused on NHS audits over the summer. There was an early indication that the external auditors may be able to commence work in October for the 2021 audit. There was a backlog up until that year and the view was that the 2021/22 audit could not be commenced until 2024 at the earliest.
- The problem was mostly prominent in England with LGPS funds.
 There was less of a problem in Scotland and Wales because the

Scottish and Welsh Government have said if the auditors could sign off the pension accounts, they did not also have to sign off the Council accounts before they could be can submitted. In England, both had to be signed off. The Scheme Advisory Board wrote to the Minister for the LGPS who had said that he was working with the officials to have a separate sign off.

- Due to the backlog in external audits, it was important that an alternative framework be established. In response, the meeting heard that a solution would be discussed with the Director of Finance.
- In response to a query regarding the impact of significant discrepancies being identified by the auditors as part of their auditing testing work, the Head of Pensions commented that the longer the issue persisted, the higher the risk of discrepancies being identified. However, it was noted that the Fund had received reasonable assurance on its internal controls and had processed in place to minimise the impact of this risk.
- Some members of the Committee and Board queried their attendance details that had been included as part of the annual report. The Head of Pensions requested for any identified inaccuracies to be raised with the pensions team after the meeting and amendments would be made were appropriate.
- A query was raised regarding the increase in administrative costs outlined on page 21 of the agenda papers. In response, the Head of Pensions confirmed that the increased was primarily attributable to administration software costs following a new contract being agreed with the software provider. It was noted that the previous contract had been in place for several years and the costs going forward were expected to be comparable year on year.
- In addition to this, it was noted that the team had made use of interim resources of the past year following the retirement of several members of staff. The Committee and Board were informed that the team restructuring exercise had now been completed with most of the pensions team vacancies filled.

- A query was raised regarding page 28 of the agenda papers where the percentage completed within the service level agreements were quite low. In response, the Committee and Board were informed that the team had experienced a backlog in some tasks due to the resource issues experienced during the financial year. However, the resource issues had largely been addressed and a plan had been put in place to address the backlog. It was further noted that senior fund officers were monitoring performance against the SLAs on a regular basis and the information would be provided to the PCB on a quarterly basis in the future.
- A query was raised regarding how the report was made available and how members were made aware of it. In response, the meeting heard that the report was designed to be published on the website. It would be possible to send notification to members for them to be informed on how the scheme was performing.
- A query was raised regarding page 27 of the agenda papers regarding disputes. In response, the meeting heard that there had not been any Internal Dispute Resolution Procedures (IDRPs) in the last year and the report would be changed so that this was clearly stated.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the Pensions Committee and Board note the draft Haringey Pension Fund Annual Accounts and unaudited accounts for the 2022/23 appended as Appendix 1 to the report.
- 2. That the draft version of the Pension Fund's Annual Report to be uploaded on to the Haringey Pension Fund's website by 1 December 2023 be approved.

11. INVESTMENT CONSULTATION

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury), introduced the item.

The Head of Pensions informed the Committee and Board of the contents of the government's open consultation on the Next Steps on Investments in the LGPS. Members were invited to commented on the

draft response and a timeline for further comments was outlined. It was noted that the submission deadline would be 2 October 2023, and the Head of Pensions would submit the response on behalf of the Haringey Pension Fund before the deadline passed.

A query was raised on whether there would be a collective response from the London Borough. The Head of Pensions informed the Committee and Board that a several discussions had taken place with various stakeholders in the LGPS which had to some degree informed the preparation of the draft response. It was further noted that the London asset pool, the London CIV, would be submitting their own response separately.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the summary of the policy proposals included in the Consultation included in section 6 of the report be noted and to provide any initial comments and feedback to assist officers in drafting a response to the Consultation.
- 2. That authority be delegated to the Head of Pensions and Treasury to draft and submit the Consultation response on behalf of the Haringey Pension Fund, in consultation with the Independent Advisor and the Chair of the Pensions Committee and Board. A copy of the final response would be circulated to members before it was submitted to the DLUHC.

12. RISK REGISTER UPDATE

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury), presented the item.

RESOLVED: That the Pensions Fund's risk register be noted.

13. LAPFF UPDATE

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury), introduced the item.

A query was raised regarding how it could be determined that Haringey Pension Fund was a responsible investor in relation to carbon and climate change. In response, the Head of Pensions highlighted the key aspects of the investment portfolio that were considered responsible investments. It was further noted that the pension fund had collaborated with asset managers to become seed investors in several funds including the RAFI Multi-Factor Climate Transition Fund and the LCIV Renewable Infrastructure Fund.

Further comments were made in relation to how the Fund, through LAPFF engaged with companies and requested that all its appointed investment managers vote in line with LAPFF's recommendations.

It was further noted that the responsible investment criteria would be a key consideration as part of the ongoing strategy review work.

Feedback from members was welcome as to when this should happen, but the plan was to do it around October 2023.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted.

14. FORWARD PLAN

Mr Tim Mpofu presented the item.

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the progress made towards the agreed key priorities outlined in section 6 of the report be noted, specifically in relation to the investment strategy review work.
- 2. That any additional matters and training requirements for inclusion within the Pensions Committee and Board's forward plan be identified.

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were none.

16. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The next meeting would be held on 4 December 2023.

17. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Items 18-20 were subject to a motion to exclude the press and public from the meeting as they contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1985); para 3 – namely information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) and para 5 –

information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

18. EXEMPT MINUTES

The minutes of the 13 July 2023 meeting would be submitted to the next scheduled meeting.

19. EXEMPT – PENSION FUND QUARTERLY INVESTMENT AND PERFORMANCE UPDATE

Mr Tim Mpofu, Head of Finance (Pensions & Treasury), presented the item.

RESOLVED:

That the Pensions Committee and Board note the information provided in section 6 of the report regarding the Pension Fund investment performance and activity for the quarter ending 30 June 2023

20. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

There were none.



Report for: Pensions Committee and Board – 30 January 2024

Item number:

Title: Draft Investment Strategy Statement

Report

authorised by: Josephine Lyseight, Assistant Director of Finance (Deputy Section

151 Officer)

Lead Officer: Tim Mpofu, Head of Pensions and Treasury

tim.mpofu@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: N/A

Report for Key/

Non Key Decision: Not applicable

1. Describe the issue under consideration

- 1.1. Haringey Council is the designated statutory Administering Authority for the Haringey Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Administering Authorities are responsible for operating the scheme in accordance with the LGPS regulations, which includes the investment of Pension Fund assets and paying pension benefits.
- 1.2. This report provides the Pensions Committee and Board (PCB) with a draft version of the Pension Fund's revised Investment Strategy Statement (ISS). This report aims to ensure that the Pension Fund has an appropriate strategy in place to fulfil its obligation of paying member pension benefits.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1. Not applicable

3. Recommendations

The Pensions Committee and Board is recommended:

- 3.1. To approve the revised Investment Strategy Statement which has been included as Confidential Appendix 1 of this report.
- 3.2. To delegate the authority to the Head of Pensions and Treasury to upload the approved Investment Strategy Statement on the Pension Fund's website.

4. Reason for Decision

4.1. Haringey Council, in its role as the Administering Authority for the Haringey Pension Fund, is required by law to keep its investment strategy under regular review from time to time, and at least once every three years. The revised Investment Strategy Statement has been prepared following the completion of the 2022 actuarial valuation exercise.



4.2. The Council has delegated the responsibility for exercising all the Council's functions as the Pension Fund's administering authority, to the Pensions Committee and Board.

5. Other options considered

5.1. Not applicable.

6. Background information

- 6.1. Following the conclusion of the actuarial valuation exercise, the Pensions Committee and Board (PCB) agreed to conduct a thorough review of its investment strategy. The purpose of this review was to ensure that the Fund's investment strategy was in line with the anticipated growth in the Fund's long-term obligations, as well as the expected future investment return requirements.
- 6.2. The high-level process included establishing investment objectives and reviewing the strategic asset allocation, following which a revised Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) would be prepared in accordance with LGPS Regulations.

Fund objectives

- 6.3. The primary objective of the Fund is to provide pension and lump sum benefits to scheme members on a defined benefit basis. To meet this primary objective, the revised ISS sets out the following investment objectives:
 - Maximise the returns from investments while keeping risk within acceptable levels.
 - Maintain a future funding level above 100%.
 - Ensure employer contribution rates remain as stable as possible.
- 6.4. Accompanying these investment objectives are the proposed investment beliefs which are set out in Appendix A of the ISS.

Strategic asset allocation

- 6.5. The Fund's strategic asset allocation has been revised in line with the Fund's objectives. The proposed revised strategic asset allocation is expected to exceed the Fund's required rate of return, which was determined during the actuarial valuation exercise, while maintaining an appropriate level of risk.
- 6.6. In addition to this, the ISS also includes proposed rebalancing ranges for rebalancing as well as the approach for carrying out rebalancing activities.

Other areas included in the ISS

6.7. The revised ISS also considers the Fund's approach to measuring and managing risk, asset pooling and includes the social, environmental and governance policy.

7. Carbon and Climate Change

7.1. Haringey Pension Fund is committed to being a responsible investor, which involves engaging with and encouraging companies to take positive action on environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues.



- 7.2. The proposed revised ISS sets out the Fund's current and future approach in detail. As part of the ongoing strategy review, further work has been planned for a thorough review of the Fund's responsible investment and ESG policies.
- 8. Statutory Officers comments (Chief Finance Officer (including procurement), Assistant Director of Corporate Governance, Equalities)

Finance and Procurement

- 8.1. The proposed revised ISS sets out the Pension Fund's approach to ensuring the long-term sustainability and affordability of the Fund.
- 8.2. The expected return of the proposed strategic asset allocation is higher than the required rate of return set at the 2022 actuarial valuation exercise. Therefore, the ISS increases the likelihood of the Fund maintaining a future funding level above 100% and ensuring that contributions rates remain as stable as possible.
 - Head of Legal and Governance [Patrick Uzice, Principal Lawyer]
- 8.3. The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) has been consulted on the contents of this report. The administering authority must invest in accordance with the Investment Strategy.
- 8.4. Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, the administering authority must, after taking proper advice, formulate an Investment Strategy (in accordance with guidance issued from time to time by the Secretary of State). It must also keep this under review (at least every three years) and if necessary, revise it.
- 8.5. The Investment Strategy must include:
 - (a) a requirement to invest fund money in a wide variety of investments;
 - (b) the authority's assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types of investments;
 - (c) the authority's approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be assessed and managed;
 - (d) the authority's approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective investment vehicles and shared services:
 - (e) the authority's policy on how social, environmental and corporate governance considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and realisation of investments: and
 - (f) the authority's policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments.
- 8.6. The Investment Strategy must set out the maximum percentage of the total value of all investments of fund money that will be invest in particular investments or classes of investment. Therefore, any decision made by the PCB must not exceed the maximum percentage for that particular or class of investment.
- 8.7. The authority must review and if necessary, revise its investment strategy from time to time, and at least every 3 years, and publish a statement of any revisions.



Equalities

- 8.8. Not applicable.
- 9. Use of Appendices
- 9.1. Confidential Appendix 1: Draft Investment Strategy Statement
- 10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
- 10.1. Not applicable.



Agenda Item 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Agenda Item 22

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt

